
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

September 13, 2016 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Sep 13 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 13 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 13 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 20 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 27 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 27 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 27 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 
B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 

C. MINUTES - 
August 19, 2016 – Board Retreat/Work Session 
August 23, 2016 – Public Work Session 

August 23, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 
August 26, 2016 – Public Meeting 
August 26, 2016 – Board Retreat/Work Session 

 
D. COMMUNICATION UPDATE 

 

E. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation recent donations made to the Elkhart Community Schools. 

 
 Public Hearing – A public hearing will be held on the 2017 Budget, 2017 Capital 

Projects and 2017 School Bus Replacement Plan. 

 
  



BOARD AGENDA September 13, 2016 
 
 

2 
   

 Budget Resolutions – The Business Office presents Budget Resolution documents 
for initial consideration.   

 
 Extra Curricular Purchases - The Business Office seeks Board approval of extra-

curricular purchase requests. 

 
 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 

school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 

 
 Partnership Agreement Update – Update on the partnership with Beacon Health 

Systems and the Community Foundation of Elkhart County. 

 
F. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 Bristol Public Library Board Appointment 
 

 NEOLA Adoption Resolution – The administration presents the NEOLA Adoption 

Resolution for initial consideration.   
 

 New Course Offerings – The administration seeks Board approval of proposed 

new course offerings. 
 

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 
trip requests. 
 

 Residential Services Agreement – The administration recommends Board 
approval of continued alternative residential services for two Elkhart 
Community Schools’ students. 

 
G. PERSONNEL 

 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 
the administration. 

 
 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 

 
H. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 

 
 From Board 

 

I. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

August 19, 2016 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 8:30 
a.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Dave Benak Cynthia Keeling 
 Doug Hasler Dawn McGrath 
 Rob Haworth Wesley Molyneaux 

 

Roll Call 

The Board discussed the potential of a survey regarding start times and the 
school calendar. 
 
Doug Hasler, Chief Operating Officer, reviewed the Sublease and Shared Use 
Agreement with Boys & Girls Clubs of Elkhart County. 
 
Cynthia Keeling, Ag Coordinator, provided an update on the Agri/Science 
program including: it is the largest program in Indiana; all 8th grade science 
classes are using state of the art equipment; Farm Bureau has donated 10 
Future Farms of America (FFA) jackets; potential for expanding curriculum for 
2017. 
 
Dave Benak, Director of the Elkhart Area Career Center, reviewed the Early 
College and Polytechnic programs highlighting machine trades, early childhood, 
automotive collision and refinishing, and requirements for various certifications. 
 
Wesley Molyneaux, Coordinator of Technical Integration, presented a slide show 
outlining the professional development and training programs being instituted. 
 
Dr. Dawn McGrath, Deputy Superintendent, shared information regarding the 
School Improvement Grant (SIG) application available now and due on August 
30, 2016.  She established the purpose of the grant as creating urgency for 
action in struggling schools.  She described the specific reform models; the 
required assurances from the Board, the Superintendent, and the Elkhart 
Teachers’ Association; the timeline of a planning year, three implementation 
years, and a sustainability year; allowable costs; and possible measurable 
outcomes.  Additionally, she presented the proposed activities in alignment with 
the strategic planning process, requesting input and direction from the Board. 
Board members contributed their analysis and recommendations for actions to 
include in the grant application. 

Topics 

Discussed 

 



 

 
The Board continued work on priorities and action steps of the strategic plan. 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 2:30 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

August 23, 2016 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Karen S. Carter Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
Absent: Glenn L. Duncan  
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Dawn McGrath 
 Shawn Hannon Kevin Scott 
 Doug Hasler Doug Thorne 
 Rob Haworth Bob Woods 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board reviewed the sublease agreement with Boys and Girls Club of Elkhart 

and agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:05 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



 1. 

MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 
August 23, 2016 

 

J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 7:00 

p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 

Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Glenn Duncan called the regular meeting of the Board of 
School Trustees to order.  The Pledge of allegiance was recited. 

 

Call to 
Order/Pledge 

Mr. Duncan discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

Protocol  

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
August 9, 2016 – Public Work Session 
August 9, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 

August 11, 2016 – Board Retreat/Work Session 
August 16, 2016 – Public Work Session 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

Shawn Hannon, assistant superintendent of communication and data, 
presented a communication update.  The report included recent media 
coverage; an upcoming story including a podcast about new food service 

offerings; and upcoming events. 
 

Communication 
Update 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 

$4,184,704.56 as shown on the August 23, 2016, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1617-21) 
 

Payment of 

Claims  

The Board received a financial report for the period January 1 – July 31, 
2016 and found it to be in order. 
 

Financial Report 

Kevin Scott, chief financial officer, reported the following fund loans 
were made on July 31, 2016: $900,000.00 from the Debt Services Fund 

to Pension Bond Debt Services Fund. 
 

Fund Loans 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation a donation 

of $500.00 from Mr. and Mrs. Panaderia Hernandez to Memorial High 
School (MHS) boys’ soccer team. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

 

Kevin Scott presented the proposed 2017 Budget, Capital Projects and 
Bus Replacement Plans for review.  Budgets are reported to the state 
through the Gateway online reporting system, as required by the 

Indiana Department of Local Government Finance (DLGF).  Mr. Scott 
reviewed the various budget documents.  He also reported a public 
hearing will be held to present the budget on September 13, 2016. 

2017 Budget 



 

 2. 

By unanimous action, the Board authorized Kevin Scott to advertise the 
required documents related to the 2017 Budget, Capital Projects and 
Bus Replacement Plans. 

 

Permission to 
Advertise 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an extra-curricular purchase 
of a new DSLR camera for Memorial High School Art Department in the 

amount of $974.85. The Rockefeller extra-curricular fund will be used. 
 

Extra 
Curricular 

Purchase 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fund raisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1617-22) 

 

Fundraiser 

Approval 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the proposed lease for space 
at Beardsley School with Boys & Girls Club of Elkhart.  The lease was 

executed by Superintendent Robert Haworth and Kevin Deary, 
President/CEO of Boys & Girls Club of Elkhart. (Codified File 1617-23) 
 

Lease with 
Boys & Girls 

Club 

President Duncan opened a public hearing on the proposed Lease for 
Beardsley School Improvements, with no comments from the audience, 
the hearing was closed.  

 

Public Hearing 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a resolution confirming the 
second amendment to lease between Elkhart Community Schools and 

the Elkhart School Building Corporation.  (Codified File 1617-24) 

Resolution 
Confirming 

Second 
Amendment 
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a resolution for additional 
appropriation for the use of bond proceeds to complete building 
improvements at Beardsley School.  (Codified File 1617-25) 

Resolution of 
Additional 
Appropriation 

 
Doug Hasler reviewed the design/bid process.  Project proposals were 
submitted on August 17th and the technical review team scored the 

proposals on qualified improvements.  Doug Hasler opened and announced 
the base bid and alternates pricing for project proposals relating to 
improvements at Beardsley School submitted by Ancon Construction and 

DJ Construction.  A Special Meeting was requested to review the final 
proposals and selection of a contractor on Friday, August 26th at 8:15 a.m.  
(Codified File 1617-26) 

 

Opening of 
Sealed Price 

Proposals 
 

Doug Hasler reported the lease agreement regarding the future aquatic 

center with Beacon Health Systems and the Community Foundation of 
Elkhart County is still being reviewed. 

Partnership 

Agreement 
Update 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions to Board 
Policy GDBA-13, Permanent Substitute Teachers’ Compensation Plan, as 
initially presented at the Board’s August 9th meeting. 

 

Board Policy 
GDBA-13 



 

 3. 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of a School 
Improvement Grant regarding Beardsley Elementary, Mary Beck 
Elementary, Pierre Moran Middle School and Roosevelt STEAM Academy 

to the Indiana Department of Education.  (Codified File 1617-27) 
 

Grant 
Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 

accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the August 23, 2016 listing and addendum. (Codified 
File 1617-28) 

 

Conference 

Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration:  

Personnel 
Report 

An agreement regarding employee compensation for a certified 
staff member. (Codified File 1617-29) 
 

Consent 
Agreement 

Employment of the following thirteen (13) certified staff members 

for the 2016-2017 school year:   
Jacqueline Collins – grade 6 at Monger 

David Degaldo – Air Force JR ROTC at Central 
Shelby Dobson – grade 3 at Riverview 
Julie Guthrie – special education at Hawthorne 

Kenneth Helbling – digital media at Career Center 
Micah Helmuth – social studies at Pierre Moran 
Lori Hoese – business at West Side 

Sarah Horn – math at Memorial 
Kelsey Kilmer – grade 1 at Daly 
Kristine Martin – business ed at Central (part-time) 

Jackie Nemeth – ESL at North Side 
Yvette Wigfall – language arts at Pierre Moran 
Brent Yoder – language arts at Pierre Moran 

 

Certified 

Employment 
 

Resignation of the following four (4) certified employees effective 
on dates indicated:   

Shanter Alexander – psychologist at ESC, 8/12/16 
Angela Balmer - grade 2 at Roosevelt, 8/31/16  
Ashley Carlson – special education at Hawthorne, 8/19/16 

Angel Hernandez – grade 5 at Beck, 8/5/16 
 

Certified 
Resignation  

Retirement of Jackie Tinsley, custodian at Osolo, effective 

10/14/16 after 17 years of service. 
  

Classified 

Retirement 

  



 

 4. 

Resignation of the following ten (10) classified staff members 
effective on dates indicated:   

Nina Bayes – paraprofessional at Daly, 8/1/16 

Cheryl DeJohn - paraprofessional at Daly, 8/3/16 
Fred Dills – custodian at Memorial, 8/9/16 
Karen Gadson - paraprofessional at Beardsley, 7/21/16 

Rose House – bus driver at Transportation, 8/18/16 
Shawn House – bus driver at Transportation, 8/18/16 
Laterica Hubbard – food service at Beardsley, 8/15/16 

Linda Jones – bus driver unassign at Transportation, 8/24/16 
Molly Loeffelholz – speech therapist at Beardsley, 8/26/16 
Angela Neal – secretary at ESC, 8/12/16 

 

Classified 
Resignation 

Regular employment for the following two (2) classified 
employees who have successfully completed their probationary 

periods, on dates indicated:  
ShaTeisa Davis – custodian at Pierre Moran, 8/15/16 
Meghan Swihart – academic trainer at Osolo, 8/19/16 

 

Classified 
Employment 

Termination of the following three (3) classified employees 
effective on dates indicated:  

Jennifer Massing – bus driver at Transportation, 8/23/16, in 
accordance with Board Policy GDPD Section 1, a, c, and g 

Jessica Owens – bus helper at Transportation, 8/23/16, in 

accordance with Board Policy GDPD Section 1, a, c and g 
Larry Schumacher – bus driver unassign at Transportation, 

8/23/16, in accordance with Board Policy GDPD Section 1, 

a, c, and g 
 

Classified 
Termination 

Unpaid leave of absence for Haley Burkhart, physical therapist at 

PACE, beginning 8/2/16 and ending on 12/16/16. 
 

Leave of 

Absence 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the reconfiguration of the 

grade spans of Central, Memorial and Elkhart Alternative Education 
through grade 14, to allow reporting students in Schools Without Walls 
to the IDOE as presented by Superintendent Haworth. 

 

From the 

Superintendent 
 

  



 

 5. 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:10 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 

____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 

 
  ____________________________________  
  Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 

 
 
  _____________________  ______________ 

  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC MEETING 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

August 26, 2016 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at  
8:15 a.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Jeri E. Stahr 
 Karen S. Carter Douglas K. Weaver 
   
Absent:  Carolyn R. Morris 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Doug Hasler Rob Haworth 
   

 

Roll Call 

President Glenn Duncan called the meeting to order and the pledge was recited. 
 

Call to 
Order/Pledge 
 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted the proposal from DJ Construction as 
the lowest adjusted price proposal for the Beardsley School Gymnasium Project, 
and authorized the Superintendent, the Chief Operating Office, and their 
designees to proceed with the negotiations with DJ Construction regarding the 
final form of the design-build contract, and the scope of such project.  (Codified 
File 1617-30) 
 

Beardsley 
Design/Build 
Proposals 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:25 a.m. 
 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 
 
Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

August 26, 2016 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 8:30 
a.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Jean Creasbaum Kevin Scott 
 Doug Hasler Doug Thorne 
 Rob Haworth Dee Wappes 
 Brenda Kolbe  

 

Roll Call 

The Board discussed the 2016 Combo IREAD-3 Passing Rate as presented by 
Dee Wappes and Jean Creasbaum; insurance issues; and the ETHOS programs. 
 
The Board continued work on the implementation plan; framework flow; and 
vision and mission statements of the strategic plan. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 1:30 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 









 

 

DATE:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 7, 2016 
 
TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM: Cynthia Bonner 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 
 
 
A $1,500.00 donation from NIVA was made to Pierre Moran Middle School for the use of their facilities 
during practices.  This donation will be deposited into the Athletic Equipment extra-curricular account 
for Pierre Moran Athletics.   
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 
appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 
 
 NIVA  
 10100 Billet Court 
 Granger IN  46530 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  August 18, 2016 

 

TO:  Dr. Robert Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM: Roosevelt Elementary STEAM ACADEMY 

 

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

 

 

Lowe’s Home Improvement on CR 6 will be donating the following to Roosevelt Elementary 

School to be used in the El Sistema Music Program. 

 

 25 plastic buckets (5-gallon) 

 4 general purpose brooms 

 12 large dowel rods 

 4 large aluminum trash cans 

 4 large aluminum trash can lids 

 1 large heavy plastic trash can 

 6 rolls of tape 

 

Total donation amount: $250.00 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

Lowes / Store 2942  

c/o Ms. Sondra K. Mall, Store Manager 

110 COUNTY ROAD 6 W,  

ELKHART, IN, 46514  

 

P 574-206-2900 

F 574-206-2901 

 

 

 

 











 RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A PLAN 

 FOR A CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

 (20-2305) 

 

 This resolution is adopted by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community 

Schools, Elkhart, Elkhart County, Indiana: 

 

 WHEREAS, A School Capital Projects Fund has been established; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is required under I.C. 20-46-6-5 to adopt a plan with 

respect to the Capital Projects Fund; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees held a public hearing on the capital projects plan on 

September 13, 2016, at 2720 California Road. 

 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees that the plan for Elkhart 

Community Schools for the years 2017 through 2021 is hereby incorporated by reference into this 

resolution, and is adopted as the Board of Trustees’ plan with respect to the School Capital Projects 

Fund. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees shall submit a certified copy of 

this resolution (including the adopted plan) to the Department of Local Government Finance as 

required by I.C. 20-40-8-8 for approval. 

 

 

ADOPTED THIS 27
th

 DAY OF September 2016. 

 

             AYE           NAY 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES, ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

 

 

ATTEST: _______________________________________, Secretary 

      Board of School Trustees, Elkhart Community Schools resolutioncpf 



 RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE YEAR 2017 

 BUS REPLACEMENT PLAN 

 (20-2305) 

 

 This resolution is adopted by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community 

Schools, Elkhart, Elkhart County, Indiana: 

 

 Whereas a School Bus Replacement Plan has been established; and 

 

 Whereas the Board of School Trustees is required under I.C. 20-46-5 to adopt a plan with 

respect to the School Bus Replacement; and 

 

 Whereas the Board of School Trustees held a public hearing on the plan on the 13
th

 day of 

September, 2016, at 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana; 

 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of School Trustees that the plan entitled  

School Bus Replacement Plan for the years 2017 through 2028, is hereby incorporated by reference 

into this resolution, and is adopted as the Board of School Trustees’ plan with respect to the School 

Bus Replacement Plan. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of School Trustees shall submit a certified 

copy of this resolution (including the adopted plan and the Calculation Worksheet) to the 

Department of Local Government as required by I.C. 20-40-7 for approval. 

 

 

ADOPTED THIS 27
th 

DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2016. 

 

   

           AYE           NAY 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

 

  BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES, ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

 

 

ATTEST: _______________________________________, Secretary 

      Board of School Trustees, Elkhart Community Schools resolutnsbr 



ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
 

RESOLUTION TO REDUCE PROPOSED BUDGET 
 

(Reduces total budget estimate, Budget Form 4B, Line 1 – 2017) 
(Reduces necessary expenditures, Jul 1-Dec 31, Budget Form 4B, Line 2 – 2016 

(Reduces Operating Balance, Budget Form 4B, Line 11) 
(Reduces Net Amount to be Raised, Budget Form 4B, Line 16) 

(Reduces Net Tax Rate, Budget Form 4B, Line 17) 
 

 WHEREAS, it may be necessary to make reductions in certain existing 
appropriations, and reductions in the proposed budget estimate, operating 
balance, net amount to be raised, and/or net tax rates, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the exact amount of such reductions will be determined through 
the budget approval process conducted by the Indiana Department of Local 
Government Finance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

(1) The Treasurer is authorized to reduce Budget Form 4B, Lines 1, 2, 
11, 16, and 17 in the amounts determined to be necessary 
through the DLGF budget approval process. 
 

(2) Said reductions are understood to modify figures and amounts 
referenced in other budget documents, including Budget Form 3 
(Notice to Taxpayers), and Budget Form 4 (Resolution for 
Appropriations and Tax Rates). 

 
(3) The Treasurer is directed to report on the amount of reduction(s) 

at a regular meeting of the Board of School Trustees. 
  



ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2016: 
 
 
  AYE       NAY 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 
 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 
 Secretary, Board of School Trustees 



ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

Elkhart, Indiana  

 
TAX NEUTRALITY RESOLUTION 

 

 

WHEREAS, the School Pension Debt Service Fund has been established for 

the purpose of budgeting principal and interest payments on pension bond debt 

authorized under Indiana Code 20-48-1-2,  

WHEREAS, Elkhart Community Schools issued debt pursuant to Indiana 

Code 20-48-1-2 in June 2006; 

 WHEREAS, Indiana Code 20-48-1-2 provides that a School Corporation shall 

reduce the total property tax levy for its transportation, school bus replacement, 

and/or capital projects funds in an amount equal to the debt service levy approved 

for the School Pension Debt Service Fund; 

 WHEREAS, the Indiana Department of Local Finance will determine the 

total property tax levy reduction amount necessary for the 2017 budget over the 

course of its budget review process;   

WHEREAS, the decision on which fund(s) to designate for reduction in the 

2017 property tax levy would be best made when DLGF has prepared preliminary 

tax rates for all such funds. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SCHOOL 

TRUSTEES OF ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS that the Chief Financial 

Officer is authorized to allocate the tax neutrality reductions required under Indiana 

law across the Capital Projects Fund, the Transportation Operating Find and the 

Bus Replacement Fund, with such amounts to be reported to the Board of School 

Trustees after they have been approved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Adopted this 27th day of September, 2016. 

 

 

              AYE              NAY 
 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 
       
 
ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Secretary, Board of School Trustees       Tax Neutrality Resolution 
 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Haworth 

  Board of school trustees 

   

From: Kevin scott 

 
Date:  September 8, 2016  

 

Subject/  extra curricular purchase 

The Business Office recommends Board approval of purchase of the following items from 
extra-curricular funds: 
 
SCHOOL/ACCOUNT       ITEM           AMOUNT 

 
 

EMHS Choir Extra-Curricular Men’s uniforms, Chamber Choir  $501.12 

                                                                 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



























































 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

To:    Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Mr. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  September 13, 2016 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

a. Consent Agreement – We recommend the approval of a consent agreement regarding unpaid time.  

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff  for employment in the 

2016-17 school year: 

Sarah Hoover   Roosevelt/Grade 2 

Terri Huffman   Daly/Grade 6 

Angela Miller   Osolo/Kindergarten 

Jason Miller   Pinewood~Osolo/Behavior Support 

Alise Thompson  Roosevelt/Intervention 

 

c. Maternity Leave – We recommend a maternity leave for the following employees: 

Alyssa Lanting   Monger/Special Education 

Begin:  9/12/16   End:  4/28/17 

 

Kendra Weirich  Daly/Kindergarten 

Begin:  8/31/16 p.m.  End:  10/21/16 

 

Daleanne Woods  Feeser/Grade 5 

Begin:  9/30/16   End:  11/11/16 

 

 

d. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Carrie Amezquita  Feeser/Grade 1 

Began:  9/2/04   Resign:  9/9/16 

 

Melissa Morey   Roosevelt/Grade 5 

Began:  8/13/13   Resign:  9/2/16 

 

CLASSIFIED 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employees: 

 

Elishia Cook   Pierre Moran/Nurse 

Began: 1/6/14   Resign: 9/20/16 

 

Edith Fernandez  Memorial/Custodian 

Began: 3/30/15   Resign: 9/16/16 

  

Terri Lee Huffman  North Side/Paraprofessional 

Began: 11/4/15   Resign: 9/9/16 

 

Inge Mraz   Monger/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/14/15   Resign: 9/2/16 

 

Jennifer Outlaw  Woodland/Paraprofessional 

Began: 1/12/15   Resign: 6/1/16 

 

Suzanne Ragsdale  Monger/Paraprofessional 

Began: 12/7/15   Resign: 9/9/16 

 

Aretha Woolwine  Transportation/ Bus Driver 

Began: 8/25/04   Resign: 9/17/16    

b. New Hires – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employees:  

 

Jennifer Allen   Beardsley/Paraprofessional 

Began: 5/2/16   PE: 8/29/16 

 

Denise Finn   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 5/4/16   PE: 8/30/16 

 

Dwight Gosser   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 4/28/16   PE: 8/24/16 

 

Jennifer Perrin  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 7/14/16   PE: 9/8/16   

 

c. Termination – We recommend termination of  the following classified employee: 

 

Jacqueline Crimi  Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 9/20/04   Terminated:  9/13/16 

    GDBA 1, section 3 

  

 

d. Unpaid Leave – We recommend an unpaid leave for the following employee:  

 

Leanna Turco   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began:   8/4/16   End:   5/26/17 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert haworth 

From:  W. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  September 13, 2016 

 

 

Addendum to Personnel Report 

 

Certified 
 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employee: 

 

Amber Revoir   Roosevelt/Grade 5 

Began:  8/12/13   Resign:  9/9/16 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Minutes - Work Session August 19 2016
	Minutes - Work Session August 23 2016
	Minutes - August 23 2016
	Minutes - Public Meeting August 26 2016
	Minutes - Work Session August 26 2016
	Gift Acceptances - Daly
	Gift Acceptance - Memorial
	Gift Acceptance - Pierre Moran
	Gift Acceptance - Roosevelt
	Gift Acceptances - Student Services
	Budget Form 4
	Resolution to Adopt CPF
	Resolution to Adopt Bus Repalcement
	Budget Reduction Resolution (2017)
	Tax Neutrality Resolution
	Extra Curricular Purchase Memo to Board
	Extra Curricular Request
	Fundraisers
	Certificate of Appointment - Bristol Library
	NEOLA Adoption Resolution
	ART REACH MURAL PAINTING 2016-17
	MIDDLE SCHOOL BUSINESS 2016-17
	VOCAL JAZZ 2016-17
	Overnight Trip Requests
	Conference Leave Requests - Perkins
	Conference Leave Requests
	Personnel Report

